
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

August 06, 2024 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Board Room 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Minutes 
1. July 16, 2024 BOC Meeting 

  

Planning Commission Unfinished Business 
2. Wes Bancroft, on behalf of Towers, LLC, is requesting conditional use approval for a 

telecommunications tower on 149.6 acres located on Paxon Dairy Road (Tax Parcel 007-

026).  

  

Planning Commission New Business 
3. Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC is requesting a variance to the setback requirements for a 

fuel station for 2.01 acres located on Fairplay Road (Tax Parcel 010-065C). 

4. Julia Chesney is requesting conditional use approval for a Farmstay on 10 acres located at 

1401 Beaverdam Road (Tax Parcel 016-046). 

  

Unfinished Business 
5. Traffic control signs to improve safety in Riverwalk Subdivision. 

  

New Business 
6. Alcohol License for Hirenkumar Patel at Apalachee 2024 Inc., 1010 Apalachee River Road  

7. Alcohol License for Ghanshyam Das at Nadia Gas Express, LLC. dba Fairplay General Store at 

2700 Fairplay Road. 

8. Resolution to Levy Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2025 and Tax Year 2024 - 2024-RES-007 

9. Farmland Protection Advisory Board Bylaws 

10. 2024 Pavement Preservation Project 

11. Property to be Declared Surplus 

12. County Manager Report 

13. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

14. Commissioner Comments 

- 1 -



July 16, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.  

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Bill Kurtz, Vice-Chair Blake McCormack, Commissioners Philipp von 

Hanstein, and Ben Riden, Jr. 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Donald Harris 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Assistant County Manager Mark Williams, 

County Attorney Christian Henry, and County Clerk Kim Cox.      

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to approve the 

agenda as presented. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
Matt Schulze gave an update on the electronic sign at the Recreation Department. 

 

MINUTES 
July 2, 2024, BOC Meeting 

  

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to approve the 

minutes as presented. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

TBS CONTRACT RENEWAL 

The Tax Assessor office contracts with Traylor Business Services (TBS) to conduct personal 

property audits. The current contract with TBS expired on  June 30, 2024. Requesting to renew 

the contract with TBS to begin July 1, 2024, to run for twelve months. If neither party is in 

default, the agreement will automatically renew itself for successive periods of one 

year unless either of the parties furnishes the other written notice to the contrary. There are no 

changes to the budgeted amount for TBS services. 

 

The county attorney has reviewed and approved the contract. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve 

contract renewal and an addendum with TBS to begin July 1, 2024.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

DEEN'S LLC CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
During budget discussions, it was recommended that the Tax Assessors office contract services for 

personal property for the FY25 budget year with Deen’s LLC. This was discussed with the Chief 

Appraiser Robert Bailey and a couple of members of the BOA. 

 

This service contract will need to be approved by the BOC and BOA. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve the 

contract for services and an addendum with Deens, LLC.  Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

LETTER OF APPROVAL TO C.W. MATHEWS TO ALLOW THEM TO TEMPORARY 

CLOSE OLD MILL ROAD TO THROUGH TRAFFIC AND DETOUR TRAFFIC 

DURING THE REALIGNMENT OF OLD MILL ROAD TO THE NEW BRIDGE OVER 

I-20 

- 2 -



July 16, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

C.W. Mathews has been awarded the contract to build the new bridge and interchange at I-20 

and Old Mill Road. 

 

The new bridge and interchange construction should not interfere with traffic on the existing Old 

Mill Road until it is time to start construction of the realignment of the existing Old Mill Road 

to the new bridge. 

 

C. W. Mathews has asked to temporarily close Old Mill Road to through traffic during the 

realignment of the roadway. It is estimated that the closure will be no more than 90 days and 

according to their schedule, the closure would be sometime in June of 2025. 

 

The acknowledgment letter was prepared by C.W. Mathews and modified by the Planning and 

Zoning Department for Morgan County Commissioners to approve the temporary closure of Old 

Mill Road to through traffic from Newborn Road to Davis Academy Road and detour traffic per 

the attached plan. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve the 

chairman to sign the acknowledgment letter for the closure and to detour the traffic per the 

presented plan.  Motion Passed 2-1 with Commissioner McCormack abstaining from the vote. 

 

 

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS TO IMPROVE SAFETY IN THE RIVERWALK 

SUBDIVISION 
 

Planning and Zoning Director Chuck Jarrell addressed the board and stated on March 16, 2024, a 

resident of the Riverwalk subdivision sent an email to Roads and Bridges to request additional 

traffic signs. Roads and Bridges reached out for assistance with determining if additional signs are 

warranted. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Department conducted a site visit to inventory existing signs and their 

condition within the subdivision. A sight-distance survey was also conducted of all of the street 

intersections within the subdivision. Code Enforcement installed the traffic/speed counters on 

Riverwalk Road and Riverbanks Road to determine the amount of traffic and speed of vehicles that 

were traveling on these roads. Discussions were also had with the Sheriff's office concerning 

complaints of vehicles speeding within the neighborhood. 

 

Staff recommendations  

1. Clean or replace existing signs within the Riverwalk subdivision. 

2. Replace the “Slow Children at Play” sign.   

3. Install “Equestrian” signs at each end of Riverbanks Road. 

4. Make the intersection of Riverwalk Road and Riverwalk Road a 3-way stop. This would 

include installing “Stop Ahead: and “Stop” signs on the North and South bound lanes of 

Riverwalk Road. 

5. Install a “Speed Limit 25 MPH” sign South of the Riverbanks Road southernmost 

intersection on Riverwalk Road. 

6. Continue to have Sheriff Officers patrol the subdivision for vehicles exceeding the speed 

limit. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner McCormack to table the request 

until the August 6, 2024, BOC meeting.  Motion Passed Unanimously 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-RES-006 - FARMLAND PROTECTION PROGRAM 

 
Earlier this year the Madison-Morgan County Conservancy presented for the Board's consideration 

a request to create a Farmland Protection Program which would assist landowners with placing 

certain eligible properties into permanent conservation easements. The Board did express interest 

in moving forward with the program as long as no direct property tax dollars were being used to 

- 3 -



July 16, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

assist in the funding. After further discussion with the Board, it was determined that the 

allocation of PILOT payments from Meta could assist in the funding effort. 

 

If the resolution is approved it would be the framework for the Farmland Protection Program. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to approve 

Resolution 2024-RES-006 as presented.  Motion Passed Unanimously 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

JoEllen Artz made a public comment about the Old Mill Rd. closure. 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Commissioners made comments and gave updates on liaison assignments. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to exit the 

regular session and adjourn at 5:56 p.m. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Bill Kurtz, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Kim Cox, County Clerk       

- 4 -



- 5 -



 

 FICKLING BUILDING, SUITE 1420 

577 MULBERRY STREET 

MACON, GEORGIA 31201 

 

PHONE: 478.750.0777 

FAX: 478.750.1777 

 

www.bakerdonelson.com 

 

 

4885-4791-8292 

ALABAMA   •  F LO R IDA  •  GEO RG IA   •  LOU IS IANA  •  M ISS I SS I P P I   •  TEN NES SEE   •  TEXAS   •  WA S HING TO N,  D .C .  

IVY N. CADLE, SHAREHOLDER 
Direct Dial: 478-765-1823 
E-Mail Address: icadle@bakerdonelson.com 

July 31, 2024 

Via Email to Christian Henry, County Attorney 
 
County Commission of Morgan County 
c/o chenry@hallboothsmith.com 
150 East Washington Street 
Madison, Georgia 30650 
 
  Re: Request for Conditional Use Permit for a Wireless Telecom. Facility  

  Located on Tax Parcel 007 026 on Pricemill Road 
   Site Name:  Pricemill Road 
 
Dear Christian: 

While Verizon Wireless is optimistic that the County's consideration of the 
Application will be conducted in a constitutional and legal manner, Verizon Wireless 
hereby notifies Morgan County of its constitutional concerns.  If the Morgan County 
Commission denies the Application for a Conditional Use Permit for the placement of a 
telecommunications tower to be located on Pricemill Road on Tax Parcel 007 026 
("Application") in whole or in part, then the Property does not have a reasonable 
economic use under the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance.   

The Application meets the test set out by the Georgia Supreme Court to be used 
in establishing the constitutional balance between private property rights and zoning as 
an expression of the government’s police power.  See Guhl vs. Holcomb Bridge Road, 
238 Ga. 322 (1977).  If the County denies the Application in whole or in part, such an 
action will deprive Applicant and Owner of the ability to use the Property in accordance 
with its highest and best use.  Similarly, if the County limits its approval of the 
Application by attaching conditions thereto affecting any portion of the Property or the 
use thereof, either of such actions being taken without Applicant’s consent, then such 
action would deprive Applicant and Owner of any reasonable use and development of 
the Property.  Any such action is unconstitutional and will result in a taking of property 
rights in violation of the just compensation clause of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia (see Ga. Const. 1983, Art. I, § 3, para. 1(a)), and the just compensation clause of 
the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution (see U.S. Const. Amend. 5).   

To the extent that the Zoning Ordinance allows such an action by the County, the 
Zoning Ordinance is unconstitutional.  Any such denial or conditional approval would 

- 6 -



County Commissioners of Morgan County 
July 31, 2024 
Page 2 
 

 

4885-4791-8292 

discriminate between Applicant and Owner and owners of similarly situated property in 
an arbitrary, capricious, unreasonable and unconstitutional manner in violation of 
Article I, Section I, Paragraph 2 of the Georgia Constitution and the Equal Protection 
Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.   

Finally, a denial or a conditional approval of the Application (with conditions not 
expressly approved by Applicant) would constitute a gross abuse of discretion and an 
unconstitutional violation of Applicant’s rights to substantive and procedural due 
process as guaranteed by the Georgia Constitution (see Ga. Const. 1983, Art. I, § 1, para. 
1) and the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution (see U.S. 
Const. Amend. 5 and 14).  Applicant further challenges the constitutionality and 
enforceability of the Zoning Ordinance for lack of objective standards, guidelines or 
criteria limiting the County's discretion in deciding such applications.   

Furthermore, the Telecommunications Act of 1996, codified at 47 U.S.C. § 332(c) 
(the “1996 TCA”) was intended to “promote competition and reduce regulation in order 
to secure lower prices and higher quality services for American telecommunications 
consumers and encourage the rapid deployment of new telecommunications 
technologies.”  Preamble to 1996 TCA.  The primary mechanisms used by the 1996 TCA 
to “promote competition and reduce regulation” are prohibitions against local 
regulations that (i) “unreasonably discriminate among providers of functionally 
equivalent services” or (ii) “prohibit or have the effect of prohibiting the provision of 
personal wireless services.”  47 U.S.C. § 332(c)(7)(B).  Also, section 253 of the 1996 TCA 
provides that “no State or local statute or regulation ...may prohibit or have the effect of 
prohibiting the ability of any entity to provide any interstate or intrastate 
telecommunications service.”  The County may violate the 1996 TCA on all three 
grounds if it denies the Application.   

Nevertheless, Applicant remains optimistic that the County's consideration of the 
Application will be conducted in a constitutional and legal manner. 

      Sincerely yours, 

       BAKER, DONELSON, BEARMAN, 
       CALDWELL & BERKOWITZ, PC 
 
 

   
       Ivy N. Cadle 

 
 

 

- 7 -



From: Cadle, Ivy
To: Chuck Jarrell
Cc: Rotenstreich, Andy; Christian G. Henry Esq. (chenry@hallboothsmith.com)
Subject: Re: Hearing Deferral Request for Proposed Tower on Paxon Dairy Road
Date: Thursday, August 1, 2024 1:26:12 PM

Thank you!

Ivy Cadle, Esq. CRE CPA | Baker Donelson | 404-956-3233

From: Chuck Jarrell <cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 1, 2024 11:49:23 AM
To: Cadle, Ivy <icadle@bakerdonelson.com>
Cc: Rotenstreich, Andy <arotenstreich@bakerdonelson.com>; Christian G. Henry Esq.
(chenry@hallboothsmith.com) <chenry@hallboothsmith.com>
Subject: RE: Hearing Deferral Request for Proposed Tower on Paxon Dairy Road
 
Mr. Cadle,
 

I will remove the application from the August 6th Board of Commissioners meeting and place it
on the September 3rd meeting.
 

Best,
 
 

Chuck Jarrell
Director
Morgan County Planning and Development
Post Office Box 1357
150 East Washington Street, Suite 200
Madison, Georgia 30650
cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov
Office: (706) 342-4373
 
 
 

From: Cadle, Ivy <icadle@bakerdonelson.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 31, 2024 5:52 PM
To: Chuck Jarrell <cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov>
Cc: Rotenstreich, Andy <arotenstreich@bakerdonelson.com>; Christian G. Henry Esq.
(chenry@hallboothsmith.com) <chenry@hallboothsmith.com>
Subject: RE: Hearing Deferral Request for Proposed Tower on Paxon Dairy Road
 
Chuck,
 

- 8 -

mailto:icadle@bakerdonelson.com
mailto:cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov
mailto:arotenstreich@bakerdonelson.com
mailto:chenry@hallboothsmith.com
mailto:cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov


To follow up on this, we would ask to be deferred until the first meeting in September so we can
have time to respond to the various things you and I discussed.
 
Best,
Ivy
 
Ivy Cadle, Esq. CPA CRE | Baker Donelson | 404-956-3233
 

From: Cadle, Ivy 
Sent: Wednesday, July 31, 2024 4:12 PM
To: Chuck Jarrell cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov <cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov>
Cc: Rotenstreich, Andy <arotenstreich@bakerdonelson.com>; Christian G. Henry Esq.
(chenry@hallboothsmith.com) <chenry@hallboothsmith.com>
Subject: Hearing Deferral Request for Proposed Tower on Paxon Dairy Road
 
Mr. Jarrell,
 
Thank you for speaking with me several times today. I appreciate it.
 
As we discussed, I’m writing to request a deferral.  To that end, I ask that the hearing on the
remaining questions for the conditional use application for a telecommunications tower on
Tax Parcel 007 026, near the intersection of Paxson Dairy Road and Price Mill Road, be
deferred until the next meeting of the Morgan County Commissioners.
 
I appreciate your consideration of this request and I look forward to hearing from you
tomorrow morning when you return to the office.
 
Best,
Ivy
 
Ivy N. Cadle, Esq. CPA CRE
Office Managing Shareholder
62nd President of the State Bar of Georgia
BAKER DONELSON
3414 Peachtree Road, N.E.
1500 Monarch Plaza
Atlanta, Georgia 30326
404-956-3233
E-Mail:  icadle@bakerdonelson.com
www.bakerdonelson.com
 
577 Mulberry Street
Fickling Building, Suite 1420
P.O. Box 5047
Macon, Georgia 30128-5047
 
Baker, Donelson, Bearman, Caldwell & Berkowitz, PC represents clients across the U.S. and abroad from offices in  Alabama,
Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Maryland, Mississippi, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, North Carolina, and Washington, D.C.
 

NOTICE: This electronic mail transmission with any attachments may constitute an
attorney-client communication, protected health information (PHI) or other confidential

- 9 -

mailto:cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov
mailto:cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov
mailto:arotenstreich@bakerdonelson.com
mailto:chenry@hallboothsmith.com
mailto:chenry@hallboothsmith.com
mailto:icadle@bakerdonelson.com
http://www.bakerdonelson.com/


information that is in fact confidential, legally protected from disclosure and/or
protected by the attorney-client privilege. If you are the intended recipient, please
maintain confidentiality and be aware that forwarding this e-mail to others may result in
a waiver of these protections and privileges and regardless electronic communications
may be at times illegally accessed and viewed. If you are not the intended recipient, this
e-mail is not intended for transmission to you, nor to be read, reviewed, used,
distributed or even received by you or any other unauthorized persons. If you have
received this electronic mail transmission in error, please double delete it from your
system immediately without copying, reading or disseminating it, and notify the sender
by reply e-mail, so that our address record can be corrected. Thank you very much.
Georgia Open Records Act: Under Georgia law, all information, including e-mail, written
letters, documents and phone messages, sent to the County Board of Commissioners and
County offices and employees is subject to Public Records law. This includes the sender's e-
mail address, home address or phone number if shown in the message, the content of the
message and any associated attachments to the mail.

- 10 -



  
 

 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  July 25, 2024 
To:  Morgan County Board of Commissioners 
From:  Tara Cooner   
RE:  August Planning Commission recommendations 
 
The following is a summary of Planning Commission discussions and recommendations from 
the July 25, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. 
 

I. Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC is requesting a variance to the setback 
requirements for a fuel station for 2.01 acres located on Fairplay Road (Tax Parcel 
010-065C). 

 
This variance request is in relation to the placement of a fuel station at the corner of Prospect 
Road and Fairplay Road, catty-corner to Fairplay Grocery, which is another convenience store 
owned by the applicant. The variance is requested because fuel stations (any structure on the 
property) require a 300’ setback from residential property lines. The subject property is only 245 
feet wide and has AR zoning on two sides. Staff explained the reason for the large setback is to 
protect nearby residences from off-site impacts such as light and noise pollution, traffic and 
possible environmental issues from fuel tanks. The closest residence is 45’ from the property 
line and there are 33 residences within 2000’ of the subject property. The proximity of an 
existing convenience store with fuel pumps was discussed. Fairplay Grocery’s fuel pumps are 
not currently operational. Test wells in the area are present to monitor ground contamination 
from potentially leaking tanks. However, the applicant says the tanks are currently not functional 
because they are too small and require refilling too frequently. The applicant is seeking the 
elimination of the 300’ setback and requesting to use only the typical commercial setback of 50’. 
Per the submitted site plan, the structures for the proposed convenience store and fuel station 
must sit right on the 50’ setback line to fit on the property.  
 
Karim Ali, applicant, stated that gas was needed in the area and he did not intend to repair the 
tanks at the existing fuel station. He refused to answer Planning Commission’s question to 
confirm that the existing tanks were leaking and simply stated that they were shut down. When 
questioned about hours, he said Fairplay Grocery was open 7am to 9pm, but the new station 
would be open 5am to 11pm.  
 
Randy Minor (owns 2650 Fairplay Road, 3971 Fairplay Road and 3500 Prospect Road) 
expressed concerns about lights, noise, traffic and the impact on her historic properties (Ponder 
House) due to the sight distance to the proposed fuel station. 
Darlene Brooks (1021 Armistead Road) stated that Fairplay Grocery created noise and light 
pollution and did not want a larger station in her back yard. 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
150 East Washington Street, Suite 200 

P.O. Box 1357 

Madison, Georgia 30650 

(706)342-4373 Office   ∙ (706)343-6455 Fax 

- 11 -



 
Mack Bohlen (2261 Propsect Road) and Larry Carter (1081 Armistead Road) did not favor or 
oppose the application but provided history of the area. 
 
The Planning Commission was concerned that elimination of the 300’ protective setback would 
create a precedent and prevent its enforcement for future projects. They stated the request was 
not a hardship but was simply an attempt to put the project on a property that was too small. 
The vote was unanimous to recommend denial of the request for a variance to the 300’ setback 
required for fuel stations for 2.01 acres at the corner of Fairplay Road and Prospect Road.  
     

II. Julia Chesney is requesting conditional use approval for a Farmstay on 10 acres 
located at 1401 Beaverdam Road (Tax Parcel 016-046). 

 
The applicant provided maps and information about the required agricultural education to qualify 
as a farmstay. The application meets the requirements of Chapter 7.33 Farmstays. The 
applicant proposes 3 guest rooms, including one room in the main dwelling with a private 
bathroom and two yurts with outdoor showers and composting toilets. Morgan County already 
has one farmstay with an outdoor shower. Composting toilets will be within the purview of the 
Health Department. Staff concerns are that the two yurts and one other building have been 
constructed or remodeled without permits.  
 
Julia and Matt Chesney, applicants, explained that they were transitioning from military service 
and wanted to educate the community about farming. They stated that the unpermitted 
construction was done prior to their purchase of the property, but they agreed that the structures 
needed to be inspected and made safe for guests.  
 
No one spoke in favor of, or in opposition to, the application. 
 
The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the conditional use 
application for a farmstay at 1401 Beaverdam Road with the conditions that all structures that 
have been constructed or modified without permits must be inspected and CO’ed, and the 
property must pass a safety inspection, prior to the issuance of an Occupational Tax Certificate. 

- 12 -



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: Intersection of Fairplay Road and Prospect Road  

Property tax parcel: 101-065C  

Acreage: 2.01 acres  

Applicant: Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC 

Property Owner: Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC 

Existing Use: Vacant   

Variance: Convenience store with fuel  

 

Summary 

        
   
Sean 
Fairplay 
Properties, 
LLC is 
requesting a 
variance to 
the setbacks 
for a fuel 
station. The 
applicant 
proposes to 
construct a 
convenience 
store and 
fuel station 
on 2.01 
acres at the 
corner of 
Fairplay 
Road and 
Prospect 
Road, which 

is currently a field. The applicant also owns the property diagonal to the subject property, which 
contains a convenience store and fuel station known locally as Fairplay Grocery. The applicant has not 
identified what he will do with the existing convenience store and fuel station if the variance request is 
approved.  
 

Petition for:  Variance-Setback for Fuel Station 

        

- 13 -



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The reason for the 
variance request is 
Chapter 7.22 of the 
Morgan County 
Zoning Ordinance 
that states no 
building or 
accessory structure 
for a service or 
fueling station shall 
be within 300 feet 
of any residential 
zoning district. The 
above zoning map 
shows the subject 
parcel surrounded 
by Agricultural 
Residential (light 
green).  
 
The adjacent 
properties also 
contain numerous 
residences, noted 
by the stars. The 
noted house 
locations include 
10 homes. Also 
shown in this 
photo is the house 
across Fairplay 
Road, but the 
collection of 
houses behind it 
on Prospect Road 
is not shown. 
Please note that 
the large buildings 
across Fairplay 
Road are barns. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

- 14 -



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 
 
 
The plan submitted by the applicant shows the convenience store 50 feet from the north property line 
and 53.3 feet from the east property line. The setbacks for any commercial building in the C1 zoning 
district when adjacent to residential property are 50 feet. Due to the size of the property, the 
convenience store and canopy are positioned at the commercial setbacks, indicated by the blue lines. 
Please see the attached larger plan for reference.  
 
The applicant’s letter acknowledges the setback issue and states that the inability of the use to work 
within the required setback is a hardship. The applicant states that the request meets the criteria for 
consideration found in Article 20. 
 
 
 
 

50’ 

53.3

’ 

- 15 -



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
From the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance. Section 20.3.1, Required Findings for Variance Approval 

(staff comments in blue): 

1. There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the property because of shape, 

size or topography and there is no feasible alternative; circumstances surrounding the request 

are not the result of acts of previous owners or of the applicant; There is no feasible alternative 

to fit a convenience store and fuel station on the subject property. The size of the property does 

not accommodate the desired use with the required setbacks. 

2. The literal interpretation of the provisions of this ordinance would create an unnecessary 

hardship or practical difficulty that renders it impossible to carry out the provisions of this 

ordinance. Such hardship does not include a financial hardship in that if the variance were 

granted, the applicant could receive a higher rate of financial return on the use of the property 

and without the variance, a lesser but still reasonable return could be realized; The question is 

whether it is a hardship or if the request is simply impracticable for the identified use to go on 

the subject property. The current zoning designation would allow for other commercial uses 

that do not require the 300 foot setback.  

3. The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the proposed use of the 

land, building or structure in the zoning district in which the development is proposed. The use 

must be permitted in the zoning district where proposed; and Although not directly stated, the 

variance is not to reduce the 300 foot setback but to eliminate the requirement and allow only 

the typical C1 setback adjacent to residential property. According to the applicant’s site plan, 

that would be the minimum variance to make the use feasible. 

4. Relief, if granted, will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of these regulations and will 

not be injurious to the neighborhood or general welfare in such a manner as will interfere with 

or discourage the appropriate development and use of adjacent land and buildings or 

unreasonably affect their value.  The purpose and intent of the required 300 foot setback is not 

specifically stated, but can be reasonably interpreted as a protection to nearby residences from 

lights, noise and traffic. While the applicant could argue that a denial of the variance request 

could affect the value of his property, alternate commercial uses are still available. The location 

of a convenience store could, however, affect the residential properties surrounding it.  

 

Staff Comments 

        
The conversation related to this request will undoubtedly need to include discussion about the existing 

Fairplay Grocery. The applicant will need to identify what is intended for the site should the variance be 

granted. Is it reasonable to have two convenience stores on opposite corners? The fact that the 

neighbors have lived next to Fairplay Grocery could be cited as a reason to dismiss any concern 

regarding lights, noise and traffic, but the scale of the two properties are vastly different.  

The main issue is, as stated in staff comments above, is the setback a hardship or is the applicant 

attempting to place a use in an unreasonable location? 

- 16 -



  Morgan County Planning Commission 

  Submit	to:		Morgan	County	Planning	&	Development	
										150	E.	Washington	Street,	Suite	200	
										Madison,	Georgia		30650	

 

Criteria for Variance 
 

From the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance, Section 20.3.1 Required Findings for Variance Approval 

 

• There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the property because of size, 

shape and topography; 

• The literal application of this Ordinance would create an unnecessary hardship; 

• A variance would not cause substantial detriment to public good and impair the purposes and 

intent of this Ordinance; 

• A variance would not confer upon the property of the applicant any special privilege denied to 

other properties in the district; 

• The special circumstances surrounding the request for the variance are not the result of acts of 

the applicant; 

• The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, buildings, or structures which is not 

permitted by right or by conditional use in the district; 

• The zoning proposal is consistent with all standards and criteria adopted by Morgan County; 

• The variance is the minimum variance that will make possible an economically viable use of the 

land, building or structure. 

 

 

 

- 17 -



  Morgan County Planning Commission 

  Submit	to:		Morgan	County	Planning	&	Development	
		 										150	E.	Washington	Street,	Suite	200	
			 										Madison,	Georgia		30650	
 

Application for Zoning Action:  Variance 

Property Information 

Address:  

Tax Parcel:  

Zoning Designation:  

Acreage:  

In Conservation Use:  Yes□  No□ 
State Waters on Property:  Yes□  No□ 

 

Submission of inaccurate information may be cause for denial of the request or, if discrepancies are realized 

after the approval for the petition or issuance of the relevant local permits, cause for the revocation of the 

approval and any related permits by the Board of Commissioners. The following documents must be 

submitted with this application prior to the application deadline. Partial applications will not be accepted. 

 

1. Payment of appropriate fee (please make checks payable to Morgan County). 

2. Plat or site plan, drawn to scale, showing the locations of structures or uses for which the variance is 

sought, as well as relationship to existing structures. Dimensions must be included. 

3. Written description of your request in letter format, addressed to the Morgan County Planning 

Commission. All required criteria (attached) must be addressed in the written description. Specific 

sections of the ordinance that would cause hardship must be identified, along with a description of 

the particular hardship. 

 

The documents listed above are the minimum requirements. Staff may require additional documentation 

depending on the nature of the Conditional Use request. All submitted documents are public records and 

subject to Opens Records Law. 

 

Has applicant made $250 or more in campaign contributions to a local government official within two years 

immediately preceding the filing of this application?  Y□  N□) If yes, please complete contribution affidavit. 

 

I have reviewed the application procedures and all applicable criteria and regulations in the Morgan County 

Zoning Ordinance for the above requested Conditional Use. I hereby claim that this application fulfills said 

procedures and meets the criteria for approval. 

 

Applicant Signature:  _________________________________________________  Date: _________________ 

Applicant Information (same as owner  Yes□  No□) 
Name:      

Address:   

                  

Phone:      

Fax:           

Email:       

- 18 -

JOsterhout
Text Box
Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC

JOsterhout
Text Box
P.O. Box 7

JOsterhout
Text Box
Tucker, GA 30095

JOsterhout
Text Box
(404) 735-1683

JOsterhout
Text Box
rahimsutar@gmail.com

JOsterhout
Text Box
010 065 C

JOsterhout
Text Box
2.01

JOsterhout
Text Box
X

JOsterhout
Text Box
X

JOsterhout
Text Box
C1

JOsterhout
Text Box
Fairplay Road

JOsterhout
Text Box
X



  Morgan County Planning Commission 

  Submit	to:		Morgan	County	Planning	&	Development	
										150	E.	Washington	Street,	Suite	200	
										Madison,	Georgia		30650	

 

Owner Authorization 

Property Information 

Address:  

Tax Parcel:  

Acreage: 

 

 
     

I swear that I am the owner of the property listed above. I authorize _________________________________ 

(applicant’s name) to apply for a zoning action (zoning map amendment, conditional use, variance) at the above 

listed address, as identified on the attached application.  

 

______________________________________    _______________________________________ 

Owner signature            Notary Public 

              Sworn and subscribed before me this  

              ___ day of ______________ 20____. 

 

Campaign Contribution Disclosure 

   If the business of the applicant or owner, or the applicant or owner individually, have made  

   contributions or gifts having a total value of over $250 or more to any elected official in Morgan County 

   within two (2) years preceding the date of this application, the following must be completed: 

 

  Name of Business: ________________________________________________________________________ 

  Business Ownership Interest: __________________  Property Ownership Interest:  ____________________ 

   

I hereby depose and say that all statements herin are true, correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and 

belief. 

 

_______________________________________    _______________________________________ 

Owner or Applicant Signature        Notary Public 

              Sworn and subscribed before me this  

              ___ day of ______________ 20____. 

Owner Information  

Name:      

Address:   

                  

Phone:      

Fax:           

Email:       

Name of Recipient  Date  Contribution Amount Description of Gift Value of Gift

           

           

           

           

- 19 -

JOsterhout
Text Box
Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC

JOsterhout
Text Box
P.O. Box 7

JOsterhout
Text Box
Tucker, GA 30095

JOsterhout
Text Box
(404) 735-1683

JOsterhout
Text Box
rahimsutar@gmail.com

JOsterhout
Text Box
Fairplay Road

JOsterhout
Text Box
010 065 C

JOsterhout
Text Box
2.01



 

 
 

36225 Detroit Road Unit 475 Avon, OH 44011  T : (440) 799-7291 www.cdg-eng.com 

Your Vision, 
Our Creation 

 

June 10, 2024 

 

Morgan County Planning Commission 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 

Madison, GA 30650 

 

Re: Fairplay Food Mart 

 Fairplay Road 

 Rutledge, GA 

 Tax Parcel: 010 065 C 

 CDG Project No.: 230028 

 

 

Dear Planning Commission: 

 

Please find a below a request for variance for the Fairplay Food Mart (Project) located at the northeast 

intersection of Fairplay Road and Prospect Road in Rutledge, GA, tax parcel number 010 065 C. The Project will 

consist of the construction of a convenience store and fuel station with four (4) pumps.  

 

The subject parcel is currently zoned C1, with neighboring properties all zoned AR. Chapter 7.22 of the Morgan 

County Zoning Ordinance, which relates to service and fueling stations, states that no building or accessory 

structures shall be within 300 feet of any residential zoning district. As shown on the site plan attached to the 

variance application, the western property line is 155.59 feet and the eastern property line is 330.94 feet. The 

subject parcel is not deep enough to meet the 300 foot setback from the residential property line. The 

requirements outlined in Chapter 7.22 prohibit the ability for a fueling station to be constructed on this 

property, thus creating a hardship. 

 

All other criteria for variance outlined in Section 20.3.1 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance met and as 

such, the property owner requests approval for a variance for the 300 foot setback as outlined in Chapter 7.22. 

We thank you for your time and consideration of this variance request. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Civil Design Group, LLC 

 

 
Joshua B. Osterhout, P.E. 

President 

  

- 20 -



  
 

 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  July 25, 2024 
To:  Morgan County Board of Commissioners 
From:  Tara Cooner   
RE:  August Planning Commission recommendations 
 
The following is a summary of Planning Commission discussions and recommendations from 
the July 25, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. 
 

I. Sean Fairplay Properties, LLC is requesting a variance to the setback 
requirements for a fuel station for 2.01 acres located on Fairplay Road (Tax Parcel 
010-065C). 

 
This variance request is in relation to the placement of a fuel station at the corner of Prospect 
Road and Fairplay Road, catty-corner to Fairplay Grocery, which is another convenience store 
owned by the applicant. The variance is requested because fuel stations (any structure on the 
property) require a 300’ setback from residential property lines. The subject property is only 245 
feet wide and has AR zoning on two sides. Staff explained the reason for the large setback is to 
protect nearby residences from off-site impacts such as light and noise pollution, traffic and 
possible environmental issues from fuel tanks. The closest residence is 45’ from the property 
line and there are 33 residences within 2000’ of the subject property. The proximity of an 
existing convenience store with fuel pumps was discussed. Fairplay Grocery’s fuel pumps are 
not currently operational. Test wells in the area are present to monitor ground contamination 
from potentially leaking tanks. However, the applicant says the tanks are currently not functional 
because they are too small and require refilling too frequently. The applicant is seeking the 
elimination of the 300’ setback and requesting to use only the typical commercial setback of 50’. 
Per the submitted site plan, the structures for the proposed convenience store and fuel station 
must sit right on the 50’ setback line to fit on the property.  
 
Karim Ali, applicant, stated that gas was needed in the area and he did not intend to repair the 
tanks at the existing fuel station. He refused to answer Planning Commission’s question to 
confirm that the existing tanks were leaking and simply stated that they were shut down. When 
questioned about hours, he said Fairplay Grocery was open 7am to 9pm, but the new station 
would be open 5am to 11pm.  
 
Randy Minor (owns 2650 Fairplay Road, 3971 Fairplay Road and 3500 Prospect Road) 
expressed concerns about lights, noise, traffic and the impact on her historic properties (Ponder 
House) due to the sight distance to the proposed fuel station. 
Darlene Brooks (1021 Armistead Road) stated that Fairplay Grocery created noise and light 
pollution and did not want a larger station in her back yard. 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
150 East Washington Street, Suite 200 

P.O. Box 1357 

Madison, Georgia 30650 

(706)342-4373 Office   ∙ (706)343-6455 Fax 

- 21 -



 
Mack Bohlen (2261 Propsect Road) and Larry Carter (1081 Armistead Road) did not favor or 
oppose the application but provided history of the area. 
 
The Planning Commission was concerned that elimination of the 300’ protective setback would 
create a precedent and prevent its enforcement for future projects. They stated the request was 
not a hardship but was simply an attempt to put the project on a property that was too small. 
The vote was unanimous to recommend denial of the request for a variance to the 300’ setback 
required for fuel stations for 2.01 acres at the corner of Fairplay Road and Prospect Road.  
     

II. Julia Chesney is requesting conditional use approval for a Farmstay on 10 acres 
located at 1401 Beaverdam Road (Tax Parcel 016-046). 

 
The applicant provided maps and information about the required agricultural education to qualify 
as a farmstay. The application meets the requirements of Chapter 7.33 Farmstays. The 
applicant proposes 3 guest rooms, including one room in the main dwelling with a private 
bathroom and two yurts with outdoor showers and composting toilets. Morgan County already 
has one farmstay with an outdoor shower. Composting toilets will be within the purview of the 
Health Department. Staff concerns are that the two yurts and one other building have been 
constructed or remodeled without permits.  
 
Julia and Matt Chesney, applicants, explained that they were transitioning from military service 
and wanted to educate the community about farming. They stated that the unpermitted 
construction was done prior to their purchase of the property, but they agreed that the structures 
needed to be inspected and made safe for guests.  
 
No one spoke in favor of, or in opposition to, the application. 
 
The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the conditional use 
application for a farmstay at 1401 Beaverdam Road with the conditions that all structures that 
have been constructed or modified without permits must be inspected and CO’ed, and the 
property must pass a safety inspection, prior to the issuance of an Occupational Tax Certificate. 

- 22 -



 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 

    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  

Property location: 1401 Beaverdam Road    

Property tax parcel: 016-046  

Acreage: 10 acres  

Applicant: Julia Chesney   

Applicant’s Agent:    

Property Owner: Matthew & Julia Chesney  

Existing Use: Single family home and farm 

Proposed Use: Singel family home, farm and farmstay   

 

Summary 
 

Julia Chesney is 

requesting 

conditional use 

approval to 

operate a farmstay 

on 10 acres 

located at 1401 

Beaverdam Road. 

The property 

contains 

numerous 

structures, 

including buildings 

associated with 

the old Nolan 

Family plantation. 

Farmstays must 

have a minimum 

of 5 acres and a 

maximum of 5 

guest rooms. The 

applicant intends 

to use one of the 

three bedrooms in 

the main dwelling 

as a guest room. 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Telecommunication Tower 

        

- 23 -



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

  
The applicant also intends to use two yurts located on the property as guest accomodations. These 
structures have composting toilets and outdoor showers. For reference, the approved farmstay on 
Fieldcrest Lane (alpaca farm) has an outdoor toilet and shower, and the lodging at the Georgia Safari 
Conservation park are non-permanent structures similar to yurts. However, the yurts on the subject 
property were constructed without permits and will require permitting and inspections. The guest room 
within the main dwelling has an in-suite bathroom and a private entrance.  
 

  
Per Chapter 7.33, a farmstay must offer a minimum of 5 educational opportunities for guests related to 
agriculture. The applicant provided a map of the property and a description of the agricultural education 
that will be offered to guests. These include instruction related to farm animals, composting, making 
preserves and a property tour. Please see submitted descriptions of each educational opportunity, as 
well as a larger map of the property and educational locations. 
 
 

- 24 -



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

   
The applicant also submitted a map showing the nearest residences and distances from the main 
educational area on the subject property. The nearest residence is approximately 600 feet away. The 
proposed educational activities do not appear to be potentially disturbing to neighbors. 
 

Criteria for Consideration  

        
Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 

Ordinance (Staff comments in blue): 

1. The proposed use is suitable in view of the use of adjacent and nearby property and the 

proposed use will not affect the existing uses or usability of adjacent or nearby uses;.  The 

proposed use should not disturb neighboring properties or prevent uses on, or usability of, 

neighboring properties. 

2. The proposed use will not cause an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or services, 

current or planned, including but not limited to transportation facilities, utilities, educational 

facilities or public safety; Utilities are already existing on-site. The proposed use should not 

cause a burden on county transportation or education.  

3. Off street parking and loading will be adequate, ingress and egress are suitable and safe, and 

vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets is not substantially hindered; 

Although the entrance to the property is near a curve on Beaverdam Road, there is adequate 

sight distance to pull out of the driveway. The applicant states in their proposal that sufficient 

parking is located on the property.   

4. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 

the proposed use; and By teaching regenerative farming, the applicant should demonstrate 

positive environmental practices. 

- 25 -



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

5. The hours and manner of operation, including noise, lighting, glare, odor, site design and scale 

are consistent with adjacent and nearby uses, as long as the manner of operation complies with 

all applicable ordinances and does not constitute a nuisance to nearby and adjacent properties. 

Typically, farmstays are not disruptive uses.  

 

Staff Comments 

        
The location and educational opportunities seem suitable for the requested use, and the applicant 

provided appropriate descriptions of the intended activities.  The yurts on the property will require 

permits and inspections. From photos provided, it appears a roof and porch has been added to the 

historic manager’s house, which will require permits and inspections as well.  If the conditional use is 

approved, the property will be subject to a safety inspection.  

If the Planning Commission recommends approval, Staff suggests the following condition: 

Prior to the issuance of an Occupational Tax Certificate, all structures on the property which have been 

constructed or altered without permits must be permitted and inspected, and the property must pass a 

safety inspection.   

- 26 -



- 27 -



- 28 -



- 29 -



- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



- 33 -



- 34 -



- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



From: Christopher McDonald <chrismcdonald@att.net>  
Sent: Saturday, July 20, 2024 10:57 PM 
To: cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov; briden@morganga.org 
Cc: john.v.rice@gmail.com; 'Sloan Crumbley' <pscrumbley@bellsouth.net>; 'Mark Buck' 
<mmbuck1@gmail.com>; 'April Bishop' <aprilbishop@gmail.com>; 'Jen Lemyre' 
<jen@compassassocmgmt.com>; chrismcdonald@att.net 
Subject: FW: Riverwalk on the Apalachee County Road Signs 

 

Mr. Jarrell / Mr. Riden; 

Greetings from the Riverwalk on the Apalachee HOA Board. I know you have been working with Jack 
Rice, one of our Board members as to the traffic patterns, speeding, signage, and potential 
mitigants to those concerns as outlined in the attached Staff report that was shared with us.  

To the request below, this report was shared with the Board in its entirety and reviewed. The Board 
has voted and with a vote of 4 ‘for’ and 1 ‘abstain’ we concur with the recommendations for the 
additional signs and the creation of a 3 way stop intersection where Riverwalk Rd circles back 
around on itself. We had conveyed that this was a possible solution under consideration in our July 
neighborhood newsletter and received no comments from any residents being for or against such a 
change. 

Please accept this message as our support for the proposed recommendations. If I can be of any 
assistance, please reach out to me at the number below. I serve as the President of the HOA. 

All Board members and our Administrative partners from Compass Management Group have been 
copied on this message for awareness. 

Regards, 

Chris McDonald 

Christopher H. McDonald 

 

- 46 -

mailto:chrismcdonald@att.net
mailto:cjarrell@morgancountyga.gov
mailto:briden@morganga.org
mailto:john.v.rice@gmail.com
mailto:pscrumbley@bellsouth.net
mailto:mmbuck1@gmail.com
mailto:aprilbishop@gmail.com
mailto:jen@compassassocmgmt.com
mailto:chrismcdonald@att.net


  
 

Staff Report 
 
Request: Riverwalk HOA request for additional traffic control signs for resident safety 
 
 
Request Summary 
 
Our objectives are: 
  
At the entrance to get people to know the speed limit and that going into the curves there are children playing. 
  

• As you come out of the curve by lot 6 and 7 heading into the subdivision heading down that hill you need to 
slow down and watch your speed because there are hidden drives on both side of the road. 

  
• The opposite is true heading to the exit people are going down hill by lot 1B lot 6, 7 and 5. We will have a serious 

crash here some day if the exit drivers don’t slow down coming down that hill into the curves. 
  

• Almost 50 kids in the neighborhood now all bile riders’ walkers etc. Suggest slow children playing signs 
throughout the subdivision. 

  
• We are an equestrian neighborhood so might be good to put some horse awareness sign especially on 

Riverbanks Road by the commons area. 
 
 
 
Staff Findings 
 

1) Assessment of traffic control signs in the Riverwalk subdivision. 
 

• An inventory of signs and their condition was conducted on May 8, 2024.  
• The findings were:  

o The “Children at Play” sign was faded to a point it was barely readable. 
o There were 8 “Speed Limit 25” signs that need to be cleaned. 
o There were 5 “Stop” signs. 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
Post Office Box 1357 

150 East Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia 30650 

Office (706) 342-4373 – Fax (706) 343-6455 
 

- 47 -



 
 
 
 

2) Sight distance assessment of street intersections.  
 

• Riverwalk Road at Price Mill Road 
o Meets or exceeds required sight distance, 610 feet, for a 55 MPH Road (Price Mill Road) 

 
• Riverbanks Road at Riverwalk Road (South end) 

o Meets or exceeds required sight distance, 280 feet, for a 25 MPH Road (Riverwalk Road) 
 

• Riverwalk Road at Riverwalk Road (Loop intersection) 
o Sight distance is limited due to crest of the North and South bound lanes at the intersection 

where Riverwalk Road dead ends to Riverwalk Road.  
o This sight limitation effects the through traffic from seeing vehicles turning West from the 

North and South bound lanes. 

- 48 -



  
North Bound Lane of Riverwalk Road 
 

 
South bound Lane of Riverwalk Road 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- 49 -



3) Traffic and speed counter locations. 
 
• The traffic/speed counters were deployed from May 20 – 28, 2024 at two locations on Riverwalk 

Road. North of the Riverwalk Road/Riverwalk Road intersection and South of the Riverwalk 
Road/Riverwalk Road intersection. 

• A traffic/speed counter was also deployed from May 20 – 28, 2024 on Riverbanks Road. 
 

4) Findings of the traffic/speed counters. 
 

Riverwalk Road, North of the intersection: 
A total of 124 vehicles crossed the counter. 
A total of 64 vehicles crossed the counter at or below the posted speed limit of 25 MPH. 
A total of 55 vehicles crossed the counter at or below 36 MPH. 
A total of 5 vehicles crossed the counter speeds between 37 and 43 MPH. 
 

 
 
 

- 50 -



Riverwalk Road, South of intersection:  
A total of 1996 vehicles crossed the counter. 
A total of 380 vehicles crossed the counter at or below the posted speed limit of 25 MPH. 
A total of 1499 vehicles crossed the counter at or below 36 MPH. 
A total of 111 vehicles crossed the counter speeds between 37 and 43 MPH. 
A total of 6 vehicles crossed the counter at speeds between 43 and 50 MPH. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

- 51 -



Riverbanks Road: 
A total of 327 vehicles crossed the counter. 
A total of 217 vehicles crossed the counter at or below the posted speed limit of 25 MPH. 
A total of 108 vehicles crossed the counter at or below 36 MPH. 
A total of 2 vehicles crossed the counter speeds between 37 and 43 MPH. 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

- 52 -



Staff Recommendations: 
 
Based on the findings of the above information, the following is recommended:  
 

1) Clean or replace existing signs within the Riverwalk subdivision. 
 

2) Replace the “Slow Children at Play” sign.  

 
             (1 Sign) 
 

3) Install “Equestrian” signs at each end of Riverbanks Road. 
 

 
                    (2 Signs) 
 

4) Make the intersection of Riverwalk Road and Riverwalk Road a 3-way stop. This would include 
installing “Stop Ahead: and “Stop” signs on the North and South bound lanes of Riverwalk Road. 

 

 
                   (6 signs)                                     (2 Signs)           
 

- 53 -



5) Install a “Speed Limit 25 MPH” sign South of the Riverbanks Road southernmost intersection on 
Riverwalk Road. 
 

 
                   (1 Sign) 
 

6) Continue to have Sheriff Officers patrol the subdivision for vehicles exceeding the speed limit. 
 
 
 

- 54 -



  - 55 -



- 56 -



- 57 -



- 58 -



- 59 -



- 60 -



- 61 -



- 62 -



- 63 -



- 64 -



- 65 -



- 66 -



- 67 -



- 68 -



- 69 -



- 70 -



MORGAN COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Presenter(s): 

Meeting Date: mm/dd/yyyy

Wording for the Agenda: 

Type of Request: 

Background/History/Details: 

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners? 

If this item requires funding, please describe: 

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when? 

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Backup Provided with Request? 

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also

your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance 

Approved by Purchasing 

Manager's Approval

Staff Notes: 

Administration Adam Mestres

08/06/2024 New Business

2024 LMIG/SPLOST Pavement Preservation 

An RFP was issued  to resurface 7.62 miles of road with chip seal and lightweight aggregate.  The only bid 
received was from Scruggs Company.  Recommend that the project be awarded to Scruggs Company.  

Motion to approve the award of Pavement Preservation Project to Scruggs Company for $424,447.60

No

No Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No

- 71 -

amestres
Typewritten Text



 

404.326.4522 | 1727 GREENSBORO ROAD | MADISON GEORGIA 30650 | 
AARON.WADLEY@LNCOPEC.COM 

7/16/2024 
 

 
Mr. Adam Mestres 
County Manager 
Morgan County Board of Commissioners 
150 E. Washington St 
Madison, GA. 30650 
 
REFERENCE:  2024 LMIG/TSPLOST PAVEMENT PRESERVATION BID CERTIFICATION: BID DATE 
7/15/24 
 
Dear Mr. Mestres, 
 
I have reviewed the single bid package we received for for the above referenced project, to resurface 
7.62 miles of road with chip seal and lightweight aggregate (like Godfrey Road). 
 
Scruggs Company:      $424,447.60, alternate 2 (Alternate 1: $603,000) 
 
I hereby certify this bid as responsible and responsive, per the solicitation. Scruggs performed this same 
contract well last year. This bid included two alternates, however patching and repair work has covered 
too much area to use alternate 1.  
   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Aaron Wadley, PE  
LNCO Planning Engineering Construction 
Madison Georgia 
Aaron.wadley@LNCOpec.com 
 
 

- 72 -



MORGAN COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Presenter(s): 

Meeting Date: mm/dd/yyyy

Wording for the Agenda: 

Type of Request: 

Background/History/Details: 

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners? 

If this item requires funding, please describe: 

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when? 

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Backup Provided with Request? 

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also

your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance 

Approved by Purchasing 

Manager's Approval

Staff Notes: 

Administration Mark Williams

08/06/2024 New Business

Property to be Declared Surplus

The attached list identifies equipment and property that are no longer utilized or have exceeded their useful life to 
be declared surplus.  The items will be sold or properly disposed.  

Motion to approve the items to be declared surplus and sold/disposed.

No

No Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No

- 73 -

amestres
Typewritten Text



DESCRIPTION DEPT

Husqvarna Mower Model: M/ZT52 Public Buildings
2016 Ford F250 VIN: 1FD7X2B61GEC16956 Public Buildings 
2008 Ford F250 VIN:  1FDSX21508EC98537 Public Works - Shop
2018 Ford F150  VIN: 1FTMF1CB3JFC65769 Publice Works - Shop
2007 Ford F150 VIN: 1FTRF14W87NA63175 Planning and Development
2003 Toyota Sequoia VIN:  5TDZT34A13S156522 Sheriff's Office - Seizure
2010 Honda Accord VIN:  1HGCP2F72AA102633 Sheriff's Office - Seizure
2017 Ford F250 VIN:  1FT7W2B68HED70041 Fire Department    
1990 Ford F700 VIN:  1FDNF70H5LVA28947 Fire Department
1992 Ford F700 VIN:  1FDNF70J2NVA04949 Fire Department
1983 Ford F700 VIN:  1FDPK70U2DVA42985 Fire Department
Lot of HP toner Multiple
Lot of Lexmark toner and toner waste container Multiple
Lot of Brother toner Multiple
3.5 Yard bucket for Case 621F Roads and Bridges
Slide in animal kennel for F150 Animal Services
Xerox Work Centre Copier 7835 SN: MX0148384 Sheriff's Office .
Lot of Furniture - Wooden L-shape desk, credenza, drafting table Multiple
19 Handheld scanners Elections
8 portable tables Elections
Ballot collection boxes Elections

PROPERTY  TO BE DECLARED SURPLUS AND SOLD 

- 74 -


	Top
	Item1.	July 16, 2024 BOC Meeting
	7-16-2024 BOC Minutes - Draft

	Item2.	Bancroft - Cell Tower
	Agenda Request - Bancroft - Cell Tower
	Ltr from Cadle - Constitutional Objections - Cell Tower - 7-31-24
	Re_ Hearing Deferral Request for Proposed Tower on Paxon Dairy Road 7-31-2024

	Item3.	Sean Fairplay Properties variance
	memo to BOC 8-6-24
	july.seanfariplay.var

	Item4.	Chesney Farmstay Conditional Use
	memo to BOC 8-6-24
	july.chesney.cu.farmstay

	Item5.	Traffic control signs to improve safety in Riverwalk Subdivision
	Agenda Request - Riverwalk
	HOA Letter
	Riverwalk Request - Staff Report 7-11-2024

	Item6.	Apalachee 2024 Inc. - Alcohol License
	Agenda Request - Apalachee 2024 - Alcohol License
	Sworn Statement - Apalachee 2024

	Item7.	Fairplay General Store - Alcohol License
	Agenda Request - Fairplay General Store - Alcohol License
	Sworn Statement  - Das - Fairplay General Store

	Item8.	Resolution to Levy Taxes for the Fiscal Year 2025 and Tax Year 2024 - 2024-RES-007
	2024 Tax Resolution

	Item9.	Farmland Protection Advisory Board Bylaws
	Farmland Bylaws Agenda Cover

	Item10.	2024 Pavement Preservation Project
	Agenda Request 2024 Paving Preservation

	Item11.	Property to be Declared Surplus
	Agenda Request Surplus Property Aug 2024

	Item12.	County Manager Report
	Item13.	Public Comments on Agenda Items
	Item14.	Commissioner Comments
	Bottom

